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	TRANSPORT STRATEGY
PUBLIC REALM & PLANNING  


	To:
	Robert Lester

	From:
	John Duffy 

	Date:
	6 April 2017

	Re:
	1-5 Kings Cross Bridge
281 Pentonville Road and 368 Grays Inn Road
London

N1 9NW

	Proposal:
	Variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission reference: 2014/0371/P dated 26/08/2014 (for the erection of a three storey building comprising retail/restaurant (Class A1/A3) at ground floor and office (Class B1a) at first and second floors and roof top plant, following demolition of existing building) to amend the access from street to basement levels; raise the ground floor slab to allow access to underground tunnels; provision of basement services (cycle/refuse storage); alterations to upper floor layout; infill of approved void between first and second floor levels; provision of a full length facade to the ground floor elevation facing Kings Cross Bridge; revised materials for office entrance on Grays Inn Road and an increase in the height of approved plant screen.

	Reference:
	2017/1206/P


I have reviewed the plans and documents submitted with the planning application 2017/1206/P. At present the application is unsatisfactory due to the proposed cycle parking arrangements – this issue needs to be addressed before the application is determined. 
This is a minor material amendment application to planning permission 2014/0371/P for the redevelopment of the site to provide retail/restaurant (Class A1/A3) at ground floor and B1a offices at first and second floors. The applicants have indicated that the ground floor unit is most likely to be occupied by a restaurant rather than a retail store.  
The main alterations are the removal of the street level access to the London Underground tunnels on the Kings Cross Bridge frontage, the raising of the ground floor level by 700mm, the relocation of cycle parking and refuse storage to the basement, the removal of the central atrium and stairwell between the first and second floors, and the removal of the secondary stairs between the first and second floor offices and the Pentonville Road frontage.

The site has a PTAL score of 6b, the highest achievable, which indicates that it has an excellent level of accessibility by public transport. The nearest stations are Kings Cross and St Pancras, whilst the nearest bust stops are located on Grays Inn Road, Euston Road and Pentonville Road.  

Cycle and Car Parking
We expect cycle parking at new developments to be provided in accordance with the standards set out in the London Plan, as per Policy T1 of the emerging Local Plan. For A3 restaurant uses the requirement is for 1 space per 175sqm for long stay plus 1 space per 40sqm short stay, which for a gross external floor area of 427sqm gives a requirement for 2 long stay and 11 short stay spaces. For office uses in central London the requirement is for 1 space per 90sqm for long stay and 1 space per 500sqm for short stay, which for a gross external floor area of 1,242sqm gives a requirement for 14 long stay spaces and 2 short stay spaces. Overall there is a requirement for 13 spaces for the restaurant use and 16 spaces for the offices, or 29 spaces in total. The submitted plan shows just 10 spaces in the basement. This is a significant shortfall. Whilst it is considered that some flexibility could be offered with regard to the retail spaces, it is considered that more effort should be made to meet the requirement for the office spaces. Another concern is with the proposed location of the cycle parking spaces. These were previously located at the ground floor but have been moved to the basement, where there is no lift access at present. Can the lift be extended to the basement ? Otherwise cyclists will have to use the stairs which are accessed from either Grays Inn Road or Pentonville Road. This issue needs to be addressed by the applicant before the application is determined. 
In line with the previously agreed Section 106 Agreement, the site should be designated as being car free – Business permits should not be issued to any future occupiers. This is in line with Development Policy DP18 of the LDF and Policy T2 of the emerging Local Plan. 
Managing the impacts of construction on the surrounding highway network

Camden LDF Development Policy DP20 states that Construction Management Plans should be secured to demonstrate how a development will minimise impacts from the movement of goods and materials during the construction process (including any demolition works).  Camden Development Policy DP21 relates to how a development is connected to the highway network. For some developments this may require control over how the development is implemented (including demolition and construction) through a Construction Management Plan (CMP).  

Given the scale of development and the location of the site adjacent to the busy Kings Cross gyratory a CMP must be secured. Our primary concern is public safety but we also need to ensure that construction traffic does not create (or add to existing) traffic congestion in the local area.  The proposal is also likely to lead to a variety of amenity issues for local people (e.g. noise, vibration, air quality, etc.). The Council needs to ensure that the development can be implemented without being detrimental to amenity or the safe and efficient operation of the highway network in the local area. A CMP must therefore be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted.

In order to minimise traffic congestion and road safety issues during development works, construction vehicle movements are acceptable between 9.30am to 4.30pm on weekdays and between 8.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays. If there is a school in the vicinity of the site or on the proposed access and/or egress routes, then deliveries must be restricted to between 9.30am and 3pm on weekdays during term time.  However, specific details would need to be agreed with Camden during development of the CMP. The CMP would need to be approved by Camden prior to works commencing on site.
We will also expect the development to be registered with the Considerate Constructors’ Scheme.  Details are available at the website below:
· https://www.ccscheme.org.uk/
The Council has a CMP pro-forma which must be used once a Principal Contractor has been appointed.  The CMP, in the form of the pro-forma, would need to be approved by the Council prior to any works commencing on site. A CMP Implementation Support Contribution of £1,140 would also need to be secured as a Section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted. The CMP pro-forma and an advice note providing further information on this financial contribution are available on the Council’s website at the hyperlink below:

· http://www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/content/environment/planning-and-built-environment/two/planning-applications/making-an-application/supporting-documentation/planning-obligations-section-106/
Highway and Public Realm Improvements directly adjacent to the site

The summary page of Development Policy DP21 states that ‘The Council will expect works affecting Highways to repair any construction damage to transport infrastructure or landscaping and reinstate all affected transport network links and road and footway surfaces following development’.

We would therefore need to secure a financial contribution for highway works (repaving the footway) directly adjacent to the site as a Section 106 planning obligation if planning permission is granted. This would allow for any damage caused during construction of the proposed development to be repaired and enable the proposal to comply with Development Policy DP21.  An estimate of the works has previously been provided as £32,500.

Summary of Section 106 Planning Obligations

The application is currently unsatisfactory due to the proposed cycle parking arrangements – this issue needs to be addressed before the application is determined. 

The following section 106 planning obligations would be required if planning permission is granted:
· Car Free (no Business Permits to be issued)

· Construction Management Plan (Pro-forma);
· CMP Implementation Support Contribution of £1,140; 
· Highway works (footway repaving adjacent to the site) of £32,500.
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